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Fort Glanville Historical Association cannon salute

Members of Victoriana Society of South Australia




Prof Scott Smith, Vice President with Phyllis Noble, Heather Sturt-Haaga,
Paul Haaga Jnr and Daniel Sturt visiting from the U.S.A. (L-R)

Hon. Dean Brown AO, Patron; Merle Weston,
President; Prof Scott Smith, Vice President

Kaiden Smith on piano, entertaining guests

Members enjoying a quiet drink at the end of festivities. L-R: Geraldine
O’Reilly, Malachy O'Reilly, John Pentland, Sally Pentland, David Posaner
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Malachy O'Reilly adding to the
occasion with some colonial songs




STURT’S BIRTHDAY CELEBRATIONS

The 28™ April was a special day for the Trust, as we celebrated the 230" birthday anniversary of the famed explorer and
pioneer, Captain Charles Sturt. The weather was beautiful with guests thoroughly enjoying the speeches, food,
refreshments, cannon firing, music and the very convivial nature of the event while catching up with friends. The raising of
the Union Jack was omitted due to lack of flagpole, but all stood for the 1850s anthem God Save the Queen and the toast
to Captain Sturt.

It was unfortunate that Richard Heathcote was required to be interstate and couldn’t deliver his speech, but Susan
McCormack did a worthy job of delivering his talk. We were pleased to welcome some special guests, Matt Cowdrey, MP
Colton, Ward Councillor Rachel Tullio, and Patricia Michel (Heritage Advocate and Director of Marble Hill).

It was wonderful to also welcome members of the Sturt family from the U.S.A. Heather Sturt-Haaga and husband Paul
Haaga Jnr who have been Trust benefactors for over 20 years, and they were accompanied by Daniel Sturt and his wife
Phyllis Noble. The family had been houseboating on the Murray River with Murray River Trails, tracing the voyage of Sturt.
Then, taking in some of Sturt’s historic South Australia sites with Denise Schumann OAM while finishing with the Spirit of
the Coorong boat tour at Goolwa. We thank the family’s donation of > $4,800 to the Trust and were pleased that they
enjoyed the celebrations.

ANNUAL STURT ADDRESS

Given at
Captain Charles Sturt’s 230t Anniversary Birthday Celebrations
Charles Sturt Historic Precinct, Grange

Written by Richard Heathcote, Director of Benefaction, Carrick Hill Museum
and delivered on his behalf by Susan McCormack, Director of Carrick Hill

The Last Expedition & Sturt’s standing as a natural historian.
180 years ago, on the 7t February 1845, Captain Charles Sturt recorded in his expedition journal for Central Australia:

“I could not but think we had approached to within a tangible distance of an inland sea from the extreme
depression and peculiar character of the country we traversed.”

By May, two months later, the expedition had come to a standstill camped at the Depot Glen, both he and his other
officers were suffering terribly from scurvy, their searching had failed to reveal any other water on the parched stony
desert except for the creek where they were camped. He wrote:

“From this period, | gave up all hope of success in any future effort | might make to escape from our dreary
prison”.

Sturt did escape, returmning to Adelaide in January 1846 having travelled 3,000 miles (4,828 kms) and although the
expedition did not reveal an inland sea or reach the Tropic of Capricorn (23 degrees 26 minutes Longitude — just north
of current day Alice Springs), it was an unmitigated success as an act of human endeavour and exploration.

It should be noted that on the return journey to Adelaide, Sturt succumbed to a serious attack of scurvy and Dr Browne
took command through the most difficult part of the journey and by using Aboriginal foods enabled Sturt to recover.

| will not go into great detail about his career and challenges he faced following his return, they are amply documented
elsewhere. So let us move in our minds, without any of the physical discomforts of a Sturt expedition, to Victoria Square,
in the heart of our state capital. There we find four monuments recording and acknowledging individuals important to
our state.



Let us focus on two:

First: Queen Victoria, who is depicted seated, the stern matriarch of the British Empire, heavily robed, holding the
royal sceptre and orb crowned by a tiara. A figure fitted out to display all the pomp and circumstance of her imperial
power. When Sturt set off on his expedition Victoria was in the seventh year of her reign which was to continue until
1901.

In contrast our hero, Captain Charles Sturt is standing, life-size although he is dressed not in finery, but in the working
clothes of an outback explorer. He wears working pants and worn knee boots. The sleeves of his open-necked shirt
are rolled up to the elbow and his head is protected by a broad brimmed hat. Sturt leans forward, shielding his eyes
from the sun with a raised right hand as he peers into the distance, a telescope and crumpled map in his left hand. He
carries his tools of trade: a compass on his belt and a water bottle slung over his shoulder. It is a pity that the artist
did not include in the explorer's equipment a VASCULUM - the light metal container used by botanists to transport
and protect plant specimens during field collections. An example of this botanists box is on display in the museum
here.

The statue’s designer was English sculptor Captain Adrian Jones (1845-1938) who was also a career soldier,
veterinarian and painter. He had already produced the horse and rider of the South African War Memorial on the corner
of North Terrace and King William Street, outside the gates of Government House (unveiled 1904). This much-admired
work reflected his ability to sculpt people and animals in motion. The commissioning of Jones to design Sturt’s statue
was influenced by the success of this earlier piece.

The statue was cast at the Frome foundry in Somerset, England. The bronze panels were made in South Australia.
The base and pedestal of Murray Bridge granite and Angaston marble were carved by monumental masons GE
Morgan of Adelaide. It was unveiled in 1916.

Formal monuments of this kind do not generally present their subjects in such a down-to-earth poses as artist Jones
does here, but | think it works well as did Sturt’s daughter. However, we are not informed by the four-bronze relief
panels recording the expedition members and unveiling committee, about the honours Sturt received following his
Central Australian exploration.

Captain Charles Sturt FLS, FRGS would be his full citation with a knighthood (KCMG) awarded posthumously
enabling his widow to become Lady Sturt.

Let me unpack this for you:

FLS = Fellow of the Linnean Society

The Linnean Society was founded in 1788 by James Smith to study and disseminate information concerning NATURAL
HISTORY. A product of the 18" century Enlightenment it is the oldest extant biological society and has its headquarters
at Burlington House. Piccadilly, London. It is named in honour of Carl Linnaeus, the Swedish botanist who created the
binomial system for classifying plants.

How did Sturt’s interest in natural history first develop? Despite Sturt’s father being a judge in India, his financial
fortunes never rose and he had eight sons to provide for. Charles, the eldest, was sent as a child of 5 to English
relatives and spent some years being educated at Harrow. He was a great reader but there were no funds to send
him to Cambridge University, so a commission was arranged in the Dorsetshire Regiment — the Napier Sturt families
being from that county. Sturt had an extensive military career serving in Canada fighting the Americans, Spain fighting
the French, Ireland and France in an occupational force. He arrived in Australia in 1827 accompanying convicts to
Sydney.

His interest in the natural world must have been noticed, as to become a member of the Linnean Society you must be
proposed by other members. At the very least he must have known Robert Brown, botanist on Mathew Flinders naval
exploration and survey of the Australian coast, as Sturt enlisted his help documenting the 26 previously unrecorded
plants for him to classify. Similarly, his friend John Gould assisted with the correct nomenclature for the 141 birds and



10 animals Sturt had observed and where possible collected the skins. The geology and soil types he relied on his
own extensive knowledge from military campaigns and travels. John Arrowsmith helped him produce the maps that
his survey measurements recorded (John McDougal Stuart being the expedition’s draftsman).

In Sydney he engaged with men such men as Alexander McLeay and his circle including Allan Cunningham, John
Oxley and Hamilton Hume. This assisted in his appointment to expeditions exploring various rivers in NSW and then
in 1830 tracing the great river Murray to discover its ocean mouth here in South Australia. Although Sturt probably
entered his career as an explorer through influence, his selection was justified by results. He was a careful and accurate
observer and an intelligent interpreter of what he saw.

RGS = Fellow of the Royal Geographic Society

The Royal Geographical Society (RGS), originally the Geographical Society of London, was founded in 1830 to
promote geographical science. In 1859, it was granted a royal charter and became known as the Royal Geographical
Society. The society has a long history of supporting explorers and expeditions, including those of David Livingstone,
Robert Scott, and Edmund Hillary. It also played a role in establishing geography as a university discipline.

Although Sturt was resident in Australia for only a third of his life (1828 -1853) he had made his mark both as an
explorer and a public servant. This prestigious Society awarded him the Founders Gold Medal in 1847 In
acknowledgement of his achievements in exploration of the interior of the Australian continent.

The citation reads: For explorations in Australia, and especially for his journey fixing the limit of Lake Torrens
and penetrating into the heart of the continent to lat. 24° 30'S, long. 138° 0'E.

The publication of his Narrative of an Expedition into Central Australia by Charles Sturt did not occur until 1853 and in
his letter to The Rt Honourable Earl Grey, (Colonial Secretary) to whom he dedicated the work, he remarks:

Under the present disappointment it must be gratifying to those who participated in my labours, as it is to myself, to
know that they are not the less appreciated by your Lordship, because they were expended in a desert.

As a postscript to this statement, it should be noted that when Sturt decided to turnback from seeking the centre of the
continent he was about 400 miles (640 kms) from his objective.

What he saw “from the summit of a sandy undulation were ridges of red sand in parallel lines beyond the range
of vision and appearing interminable”.

To have reached Central Mt Stuart would have meant crossing the Simpson Desert on foot (no horses being able to
survive without fodder and water) so Sturt would certainly have perished in the attempt.

The Simpson Desert was crossed for the first and only time, 94 years later in 1941, by C.T. Madigan using camels. It
is ironic to note that camels are often called ‘Ships of the Desert’ as they traverse the seas of sand able to withstand
heat and dryness, relying on their stored reserves of fat. Since camels were not effectively imported into Australia until
the 1850s they were not available to Sturt, nor could he be blamed for there being no inland sea in central Australia.

LATEST HAPPENINGS

The Board is in the process of producing our Business Plan for 2025-2030 and examining our operations to
meet the History Trust of South Australia’s Museums and Collections Program renewal application for 2025.
We have identified a number of undertakings that require our attention in the foreseeable future, primarily
maintenance of the property and collection. To that end we have recently replaced all the broken slate roof
tiles and had the roof sprayed to remove the lichen, while the gutters were also cleaned.
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Future undertakings identified are the painting of the Grange foyer and the upper fascia of the roof, repair of
the brush fence, restoration of the The Grange brick mortar, the re-wall papering of four Grange rooms and the
conservation of furniture, books and artefacts.

We have purchased a large heritage Indian carpet for the Drawing Room, restored a Persian carpet donated
by the Sturt Family in 1967. The Trust would like to thank our President Merle Weston, who once again has
been a generous benefactor with a donation of $10,000 to purchase the Indian carpet for the Drawing Room.

The Trust was very pleased that many volunteers turned up for a garden working bee. We installed timber
garden edging, tree branches lopped, extensive weeding, trimming of garden edges, the four shed rooves
cleared of branches and leaves, the disposal of old bricks, steel reinforcing, glass panels efc. it was a most
successful day. Thanks to all those volunteers. We also acknowledge some new members Jonathon Pope,
Gavin Parry, Ben Nicholson and Lyndon Zimmermann. Lyndon indicated his enthusiasm to serve on the Trust
Board, and was accepted to fill the vacancy for General Committee person.

~ Our History Festival participation was
'~ successful. We opened every Sunday in May
and invited visitors to Devonshire Teas, tours
and a talk by Scott and Kaiden Smith about “A
Life Time of Decision Making” which will be
published as a Supplement. We weren't
overwhelmed with visitors in the first three
#® weeks with an average of twelve per week but
| Sunday 25t proved to be an overwhelming
success with 34 visitors. Thanks to Malachy
O'Reilly, Julie Dini, Merle Weston and
i Margaret Phillips for tours and afternoon teas.
Also thanks to Lisa Smith for capturing the
whole event on film.




Unfortunately, 50kph winds tore
through Adelaide the next day causing
huge seas along the beach front,
much damage to beach side homes
and businesses and power outages
for over 8 hours in many districts. The
Museum wasn't spared either, with a
few large gum tree branches breaking
off and the marquee sustaining
significant damage.

It was very pleasing that we could
round up a group of volunteers by
8.00am to take down the marquee and
store all the chairs. Many thanks to
John Pentland, David Posaner,
Lyndon Zimmermann, Graham Pike,
Anne McCutcheon and Margaret
Phillips.  John did an absolutely
sterling job, sawing up all the
branches and clearing the site. A new
marquee frame is on order.
Society of Australian Genealogists

Prof Scott Smith, Vice President of the Trust, delivered an online lecture on 21 June 2025 to the Society of
Australian Genealogists as organised by its Colonial Australia Research Group. The event was themed
“Building the Colonies” and was attended by about 30 members. Scott spoke about The Grange, namely its
journey over three centuries from its initial build and residency by Captain Charles Sturt and his family (1840-
1853) (19th century), to the restoration of the Grange in the 1960s (20th century), to the Grange and museum
precinct as it stands today (21st century). Following an overview of key historical facts from the 1830s to the
restoration in the 1960s, Scott also spoke about the architectural style of the house as well as its design
approach, building techniques and building materials. The talk was well-received by the Society.

The Grange: ,
A Journey

Across Three
Centuries

Scott Smith
Vice President,
Charles Sturt Memorial Museum Trust Inc.

@ charlessturtmuseum.com.au
§ facebook.com/charlessturtmuseum/

Professor of Structural Engineering,
The University of Adelaide

& stsmith999@gmail.com
in stsmith999

E.C. Frome’s (Surveyor General of SA, 1839-49) painting of the Grange C1849




